Conclusion: What is "Chronicled"

Ignorance And Arrogance Make Another Non-Assassination Book

Chapter 6

Conclusion: What is "Chronicled"

Those who defend the official assassination mythology and almost all of those who have written books critical of it have pronounced egos.  They all believe they have understanding and perceptions others do not have.  The more pronounced their demonstrations of their ego the greater the subject-matter ignorance their work reflects.

All also begin with preconceptions and all are unwilling to consider what refutes or does not agree with their preconceptions.

Not one of them has made a systematic study of the documents that were released in anticipation of or under court compulsion in FOIA lawsuits. For twenty years as of this writing the third of a million pages of once-withheld records I obtained have been freely available to all writing in the field, along with the use of our copier.  Most, like the LaFontaines, are not really familiar with the Commission's published evidence.

Several who could afford to hire others to do their work did that.  With each it was easy from the questions asked me to see that those who paid them had them looking for what they believed would support the preconception of the employing author.  I recall no instance in which any research was designed to test the validity of any preconception and I am confident that none undertook any real study in these records to ascertain whether or not any author's preconception was even possible.  When I volunteered information that refuted these preconcepts some of those authors came to regard me as a national enemy.  One even manufactured a palpably false case of me as a collaborator of an actual alleged assassin, as a coconspirator.

All, like the LaFontaines, deny substituting theories or beliefs for fact and without any exception, all of both extremes do and must do precisely what they deny doing and attribute as an offense to those they do not agree with.

The more obvious the ego the more obvious the subject-matter ignorance with most of them.  The La Fontaines are a prime example of that.

This is but a hasty skimming of the book of that couple of egomaniacal subject-matter ignoramuses with their overweening opinion of their intelligence and perceptiveness.  The dishonesty of their book was assured by the dishonesty of their concept.  It is not possible to do an honest book on the assassination without a full, honest and informed assessment of the evidence claimed to establish Oswald's guilt.  It is not possible to believe he was guilty when all the official evidence is examined and understood.

They began with the assumption of his guilt.  That alone made a dishonest book inevitable.

Their bibliography, skimpy as it is, reflects their prejudices and preconceptions as well as their poor judgement.  It reflects also on their personal and professional integrity.

As an example of this they include and in their book they use Gerald Posner's mistitled Case Closed.  Posner's title reflects their preconception.  However, that they did not include my Case Open (Carroll & Graf/Richard Gallen), the book that disproves his, is an additional reflection on their personal and professional integrity.  It appeared in early 1994.  Posner's hardback (Random House) appeared toward the end of 1993.  In Case Open I proved he was a plagiarist, a shyster and had trouble telling the truth even by accident.  Although only about a fourth of what I wrote was published, it repeatedly  proved his dishonesty.  That book was a direct assault on his integrity and that of his highly-promoted book.

His book was reprinted in September, 1994, by the Anchor Books subsidiary of Doubleday.  In it he made changes to hide his most flagrant plagiarism in his hardback in response to my having proved it. 

He added less than four pages of an Author's Note at the beginning of his reprint.  He begins it claiming that the "response" to it "surprised both me and my publisher."  Perhaps he was referring to the fact that there was but the first printing in hardback and all of the one printing was not sold.  He did not entirely ignore what I had written about him and his book but he had not a thing, not a single word, to say about my utter destruction of his and his book's integrity.  Instead he elected to prove how correct I was in saying he has trouble telling the truth by accident.  This is his one sentence about me and about Case Open and what it did to him and his book:

Harold Weisberg, one of the deans on the conspiracy press, found his first publisher (he had previously self-published six conspiracy books) to bring out a book titled Case Open, a broadside attack attempting to diminish the impact of my work.

That was my thirteenth commercial publication, not the first.

The seventh was my Oswald in New Orleans.  Posner omits it from his bibliography but he quotes from it and from it alone on his page 150.  So he knew it had been published commercially.  Saying he quoted it is a kindness.  He misrepresented and misquoted it.

So he lied, and not by accident, in what he said about my commercial publication and in his pretending I had not written Oswald in New Orleans by omitting his source, his only possible source,  on his page 150.

He lied repetitiously.

Oswald in New Orleans is in the La Fontaine bibliography along with Posner's book but as we have seen, they did not read my book. So even if they read Posner's book as uncritically as they reflect, they were not looking for what tested its dependability.  They wanted to use it to buttress their preconception.  The only places they use it are in their appendix, "The Case Against Oswald," where they cite what Posner plagiarized from Failure Analysis and misrepresent it in addition.  If they cared about their reputations, and having published this book it seems that they have no concern for their personal or professional reputations, they would resent Posner's suckering them as he did so many.  Even the prestigious Philadelphia Inquirer published an editorial praising Posner for going to the trouble and expense of hiring that firm to do his scientific testing for him C what he plagiarized!

His plagiarism of Failure Analysis' work and presenting it as work done for him is what he had to correct in the Anchor reprint referred to above.  Even then it is grudging acknowledgment that disguises the truth to the degree he dared.

As Case Open proved beyond question, what Failure Analysis did, for the bar association, was to present both sides of an Oswald case in a mock trial with the intent of showing the bar the use that could be made of modern scientific innovations.  It was broadcast by Court TV, which is where Posner learned about it -- and he still had the gall to actually pretend it as work done for him.

What the defense part of the Failure Analysis presentation did was to largely ignore this scientific mumbo-jumbo because all it had to do was create "reasonable doubt" to have the jury acquit Oswald.  Which it did!  Without mention by Posner or the La Fontaines.

Here is their first mention of Failure Analysis:

The ballistics analysis Posner presents (the work of a Bay area organization, Failure Analysis) in itself is part of the "new evidence," recently gathered information that should be considered seriously by any assassination student more interested in arriving at the truth than in learning to recite Warren or conspiracy conclusions.

When they return to this on page 376 they say of it merely that it was for that bar association mock trial and was used by Posner, without saying he represented it as work done for him.  They also are careful not to say that the jury did not buy that scientific gobbledygook and acquitted.

On page 376 they get more fully into the Posner mode and literally lie.  They there say that this one and unsuccessful side was "the findings of Failure Analysis repeated in Posner's book."  It was not Failure Analysis' "findings" as Failure Analysis itself made specific and as I reprinted their letter to me in Case Open.

And the LaFontaines call themselves "journalists" and "investigative reporters" without shame!

They know that the Failure Analysis work was done for the bar association and for a mock-trial presentation, for no other purpose or reason.  They know that Posner presented that work as done for him.  They do not say this, knowing it.  Yet in what is quoted above, they advise all others to regard one side only of what Failure Analysis did as definitive, as established fact, which it was not.

How they knew they do not indicate.  If they knew from a newspaper story that was given them saying that what Failure Analysis actually presented was both sides of a mock trial they do not say that.  They give no source for saying that the presentation was for the bar association or was a mock trial.

Their omission of any source and of the fact that Posner was dishonest in all of that does suggest that they knew about Case Open, as some of those they refer to as their sources and helpers did.

Their omissions, which include their misrepresentation of what Failure Analysis did and what it said on the record about what it did -- and did not do -- and their protection of Posner so they could misuse him in their book, raise additional questions about their integrity, personal and professional, and about their book.  

If as it did not, their book had had any credibility, this alone is enough to destroy its credibility.

As we have already seen this is not atypical of the La Fontaines in their quest for fame and fortune through contrived scandals in which they can never be trusted.  In this instance they lied and they lied because either they felt they had to pretend there was a case against Oswald or from their ignorance of  both the subject matter and the available literature.

They do have one acknowledged novel, several pretended not to be when they are and a number of books not on the assassination in their bibliography.  But as this shows and as has been clear throughout their book, they avoided the best sources, the most dependable books, because they were not looking for truth, for established fact.  They sought scandal they could commercialize and exploit and in doing this then condemned themselves as no enemy could do.

This was inevitable from their approach, in part because they are Johnny-Come-latelys who never overcame the ignorance with which they began and because they had a formula to begin with and cared naught for anything else.

This is not journalism.  It is not investigative reporting.  It is not honest writing.  It seeks to corrupt both our history and the public mind for their own aggrandizement, their only interest and concern.

They are not by any means unique in this.  It characterizes all the work of  both extremes.  We saw above several illustrations from Posner, a small percentage of the cases of this offense that characterize his book.

It is an occupational hazard that cannot be avoided by either extreme.  I recall no exception.  The variations are in degree, not in fact.  They begin with Epstein and his first book and with the respected The Death of a President by William Manchester (Harper & Row, 1967).

It was true beginning with the earliest books and other than in books it was true from the time the Report was issued.

We have seen more than enough to leave it without questions that the title and the subtitle of this ignorant, dishonest, misleading and misinforming book are lies.

Oswald did not "talk" and the La Fontaines offer no "new evidence in the JFK assassination."  Their book in fact is not about that assassination.  It is their ego-tripping and sensationalizing of irrelevancies.  This pursuit is enhanced enormously by their determined preservation of a state of ignorance about the assassination itself.

It is a dishonest book and a stupid book, as we have seen.

It is a formula book, one that begins with invalid beliefs that seem to the authors to be different and on that basis alone commercial.

With all it is preposterous in many ways.

One of the most obvious of these is that it has Oswald working for the CIA, the FBI and the Dallas police at least besides private groups like the one they imagine the late Guy Banister had and from this career never got a penny or faced any conflicts of interest.

It is preposterous to believe that the high-school dropout who possessed not a single skill of any kind would be sought out by police, intelligence and private interests whose interests required skills he did not have.

In the La Fontaine dream world a young man with no prior experience of any kind to prepare him can "penetrate" and become trusted as soon as he appears by those conspiring to violate the law.

In their dream world Jack Ruby ran a successful gun-smuggling operation that Oswald penetrated and informed on without any imagined function assigned to him and for which Ruby allegedly killed him.  Ruby supposedly profited from this but died deep in debt despite his alleged profits.

In their dream world Oswald "penetrated" the Cuban DRE where it had no organization at all to be penetrated so he could report on their arms cache where it had none and where the report that led to the raid was caused by those Cubans themselves.  His means of "penetrating" that one-man DRE was to insult and offend him the one time he saw him.  How ridiculous can one get and not face it?

Still in their dream world because none of this is real, Oswald shifted to Dallas, where he "penetrated" the alleged but unproven Jack Ruby gun-smuggling ring.  And he allegedly reported on it to abort one planned arrest with another thus at least by inference also aborting an invasion of Cuba by the same DRE Oswald supposedly penetrated in New Orleans leading to the raid that led to the capture of a DRE arms "cache" that was not of the DRE.  This allegedly prevented a DRE invasion of Cuba to get rid of Castro and led to the assassination of President Kennedy.

All of this began with the alleged talking of John Franklin Elrod who refused to say a word of it when the La Fontaines had him on camera on a TV show and who is not once quoted directly as having said a word of what is attributed to him -- without which the La Fontaines would have had no book.

Not everyone is equipped for this kind of writing.  For it there are prerequisites.  These include the demands it makes on those who do this kind of writing.  It begins with their personalities.  All practitioners share these characteristics.  All the practitioners do not reflect having these personality characteristics in the same degree but they do demonstrate having all of them.  They do tend to synergize, particularly with the La Fontaines.  A few of them are:

Arrogance.  These people actually believe they are wiser, more experienced, more perceptive and have better judgement than mere mortals.

They see what is not there to be seen and they cannot see what is obvious.

Thus when Elrod was emphatic in telling the FBI he knew nothing at all about the assassination they knew he meant the exact opposite and they therefore base their book on the exact opposite of what he was so emphatic about to the FBI whose agents recorded his exceptional emphasis.

When Elrod told those agents he was in a cell numbered 10 and it was well known that Oswald  was in a cell numbered 2 in the F block, they knew and say that there was no cell numbered only 10 and therefore Elrod was in the same cell as Oswald.  Without this, too, they have no book.

All the sworn evidence by those in a position to know, including by Hosty himself, is that he had no contact of any kind with Oswald prior to the assassination but again, the La Fontaines know better than the established truth and they have Oswald as an informant or "operative" for and in contact with Hosty because, without this, too, they have no book.

De Mohrenschildt swore that he was never the agent of any government other than when as a geologist he worked for the International Cooperation Administration and specifically that he was never an intelligence agent for any government.  But the La Fontaines, being the La Fontaines, know better than the truth and so they have de Mohrenschildt working for the CIA, including as a "baby sitter" for Oswald.  

This, too, their book required, the reason they knew better than the truth.

These are only a few examples.  They know better than the established truth about anything and anybody and so they need not know the established fact.

Their arrogance is synergized by their subject-matter ignorance.  Armed as they believe themselves with all those superior qualities they attribute to themselves they know they do not need to know what there is to know that is established fact of the assassination so they write about it from the profoundest of ignorance of it.  While insisting that they begin with no "agenda" they also state the agenda with which they do begin, their controlling agenda, in their own words, Awe held only one preconceived notion: Lee Harvey Oswald acted alone."

They reveal other preconceptions that amount to agenda, such as that Oswald had some kind of intelligence and/or police connection.

They allege that all others espouse theories they describe  as "tired" and proclaim that they have no theories when all  they write is dignified by being called theories.

Their ignorance and that of their most prized sources, particularly their "Silicon Valley cavalry" Bill Adams, is such that they claim to have been the first to have "debunked  conclusively one of the most enduring assassination conspiracy myths," what they refer to as the "legend of the three tramps" when in fact that was debunked when they were children, that debunking being public available in the FBI's public reading rooms so many years before the assassination bug bit them.

They claim for their Adams the great "discovery" of an FBI report of 1964 of its interview of Elrod when that, too, long was in the FBI's public reading room without them or their guru Adams being aware of it.

Thus they claim that prior to their great "discovery" that enabled them to debunk what long had been officially and unofficially debunked, that alleged "legend" they attribute to all others who believe there had been a conspiracy "masked the key to the case" which is what they invent out of nothing but ignorance and dishonesty to have this book.  The book that without it they would not have.  The book that has not a single word of "new evidence in the JFK assassination" in its 454 pages.

Beginning with their agenda of Oswald's lone guilt they have not a word about the medical and much other evidence of which they began ignorant and remained ignorant.  To assure that their ignorance of the most basic evidence would not disturb what they make up to have their book they ignored all the publicly available and entirely undisputed official evidence that disproves the official theory, the oldest and the most "tired" of them, of Oswald's lone guilt that to be safe and have their book they adopted as their own.  It is a prerequisite for publishability.

They prefer and use, as their bibliography and text establish, the most irresponsible and undependable of the works of mythology, even a novel, to the unrefuted books that use the official evidence to disprove the official interpretation of that very evidence, the official mythology that is less than a theory that they make their own theory that they deny having when without it, too, they have no book.

They not only made no use of, they do not even acknowledge the existence of hundreds of thousands of pages of official evidence that were in the public domain before the assassination bug bit them, in their own account, when they were taken with and spent six months trying to prove the most indecent of the phony "theories," that of the loving son Rickey White who tried to get rich on the fiction that his own father Roscoe was the assassin and the Tippit killer.

If they had not so steadfastly preserved their ignorance of all those hundreds of thousands of pages of official evidence publicly  available before they began to write they could not have had their book, either.

This also illustrates their dishonesty.  When claimed sources are misrepresented about what is basic in writing it is not honest to refer to this kind of dishonesty in any understated way.  It is lying and it should be referred to as what it is, lying.

When the only actual evidence is official and sworn evidence and it is included in what writers claim is among their sources and those writers ignore that evidence and repeatedly insist on the exact opposite of it, that, too, is lying.

One of the many examples of this first of these serious offenses for any writer is the La Fontaine insistence, which is vital to the fiction of their book, that Oswald worked for the FBI and that his work for it began when Dallas FBI agent James Patrick Hosty made the first of his allegedly repeated contacts with Oswald.  All the sworn testimony by those who had any knowledge, including that of Hosty himself, is that there was no contact of any kind until after the assassination.

An example of the second of these most serious writing offenses is the La Fontaine repeated insistence that George de Mohrenschildt worked in an intelligence role for the CIA and that as part of his work for the CIA he was allegedly the Oswald "baby sitter."  De Mohrenschildt testified under oath he had never worked in any such role for any government.

Representing that what they write was what Elrod told them when he did not and would not say anything like what they attribute to him -- without which they would have no book -- is deliberately dishonest.  It is a form of lying. 

It is not honest for the La Fontaines to represent that in their book one of their sources is the published hearings and Report of the Warren Commission when for the most part they cite it from secondary sources, which they may also be doing when they cite the volumes they do not say they have and which were exceptionally difficult to get before they saw the possibilities for commercializing and exploiting the assassination.  One of the many example also involved my Oswald in New Orleans, which they not only claim to use, they use it less than honestly and not when they should have.

As their source on Oswald's security clearance they use the recollection of a fellow marine of twenty years later.  They say Oswald had CONFIDENTIAL clearance without telling the reader that is the lowest of security clearances (page 57).  They say he got that clearance on graduating radar school at Keesler Field, Biloxi, Mississippi.  That clearance was issued on graduation from the basic school at Jacksonville.  He and the others who went to his outfit with him from that advanced school at Biloxi had CRYPTO clearance.  That they had this clearance is in Oswald in New Orleans, which the La Fontaines did use and misuse.  Oswald in New Orleans also reviewed and cited the Commission testimony on this. The Commission's testimony -- all of it -- is that Oswald had to have had "at least" secret clearance for the radar job he and four others only in that outfit had.

The Commission's evidence is that Oswald was strongly anti-Communist.  That, also with citations, as with his security clearance, is reported in Oswald in New Orleans but is not in the La Fontaine's book.  Implying the opposite, they do not report what the official evidence proves Oswald's actual be political beliefs really were.

Because each of these illustrations, properly used, could have added a little substance and credibility to the story they make up, that they did not use either indicates they were not aware of either.  In turn this indicates that what they used of Oswald in New Orleans is what was given them, not what their scholarship yielded.

In summary one could go on endlessly with such charges against them but repeating them all at the conclusion is not necessary.  What precedes in this manuscript also is far from all.  But it is more than enough to describe and define them and their work and to demonstrate that with the arrogance, subject-matter ignorance and dishonesty required by their concept they faced no problems meeting these prerequisites.

It really was no challenge at all for them.

This pays scant attention to other of their fables and they are not worth any time or attention. None is proven, none is even reasonable as a suspicion.  Some was publicly reported in detail before the bug of their imagined possibilities bit them as hard as it did.

Their Nancy Perrin Rich story was published in even greater detail and from the official records in Whitewash II.  That dates to 1966, or it was thirty years before them and their imagined enhancement of it.

Their story about Jack Ruby as the successful and important merchant of stolen military arms had no basis in fact and it is amply refuted by the official evidence about him and about his financial distress at the time he killed Oswald.  His banking records, which I have seen, make a silly joke of it and all that relates to it.

There are records on Ruby as a person that were not made public that I have seen.  They make it clear that nobody who knew him at all well would have trusted him in any kind of conspiracy.  In this imagined role of his in the illegal arms business he served no role others could not have served better and without his not inconsiderable liabilities.

One of the psychiatric examinations of him for the court identify his serious psychological problems.  It urged immediate hospitalization of him before the trial began because those problems were that serious.  This is in the Commission's records the La Fontaines ignored entirely, an estimated two hundred cubic feet of them.  It was given to the Commission by Henry Wade.  The kind of man that court-approved examination establishes Ruby was would not have been trusted by anyone who knew him.

Their Goicochia/DRE invasion of Cuba business they refer to as of the greatest importance has not that at all, as they themselves make clear seemingly oblivious of it in their quotation of the CIA's Ted Shackley.  It is ludicrous even as they tell the story.  Of course they do not intend for it to be taken as ludicrous.

Also ludicrous and also not intended to be taken that way is what they build toward as they tell their story.

The final chapter of their text has a title the appropriateness they did not see as others can.  It is "White Lies."  Obviously they do not see the appropriateness of this title as it applies to their book and to them.

Their text ends with other unintended self-disclosures they still again were not sensitive to.  They are not unduly immodest in it.  They are critical of the major media for not recognizing them as the unique geniuses they say they are and for not recognizing the earthshaking importance of what they first say they could do and then say they did do.  (They use the word "groundbreaking" but they really do mean earthshaking, like an earthquake.)

They lead into this with criticism of CBS-TV and of Newsweek of the major media for what they did and did not do to mark the assassination's thirtieth anniversary.  They single out Hugh Aynesworth of Newsweek and Dan Rather and note that despite their efforts "90 percent of the American public, for some reason, still mistrust the media's assassination conclusion."  To this they add, "Some people never learn, apparently" (page 346).

Truer words were never spoken!

They refer to what they do not identify and do not source, a poll taken for CBS.  The questions did not include one asking "What do you think of the media's assassination conclusion?"  The poll's questions were in terms of the official conclusions.  The 90 percent told the interviewers that they did not trust or believe the official assassination conclusions.

It might be that if the pollsters had asked what was believed about the major media and the assassination the results would have been the same or close to it.  But the question was not about the major media and the La Fontaines, disliking the major news media as they do, tell their readers that the poll did ask what was believed of the major media.

As they themselves say, "Some people never learn, apparently."

They go into this in leading into themselves as the "journalists" they  say  they are.  In doing that it does not hurt a thing to try to put Dan Rather down.

The last four pages of their text (pages 346-349) is their account of their achieving their high status as journalists.  It begins:

By the summer of 1992, the La Fontaines believed they had material sufficient for a documentary on the new assassination evidence.  They made a proposal to PBS affiliate station KHOU in Houston.  Executive producer Miriam Korshak agreed to provide a postproduction and station sponsorship for the project, and sent a letter to this effect to help with fund raising.  Ray then began the chore of raising money, hitting up corporations, foundations, and even individuals, all to no avail.  Kennedy assassination stories, no matter how ground-breaking, were outré for institutions and didn't have enough sex for everyone else.  After six months of refusals, including one from Ray's uncle, who suggested, not unreasonably, that he try a different line of work, the La Fontaines gave up (page 346).

In their own account by the summer of 1992 "they had material sufficient for a documentary on the new assassination evidence."  In this they are saying that as responsible journalists they  by then knew enough, had enough material for what in this same paragraph they refer to as "groundbreaking," referring to "Kennedy assassination stories."

"The summer of 1992" was in their own account, two years or less after the assassination bug bit them.  As we saw earlier, they spent the first six months of their adventure trying desperately to validate the transparent fiction Rickey White and his wife made up to honor Rickey's father by selling him as the assassin.  In their own account, the bug bit Ray while he was driving along listening to the radio and heard of Rickey's press conference on his exploit (page 328).  That was in, they say, August, 1990 (page 328).  They spend the next eleven pages on that business they concluded, after six months, was not a truthful account.  Had they not been bitten by that bug they would not have wasted those six months.  The simplest kind of checking, and they were not subject-matter experts so they did not know the fact that would have told them that Rickey was a money-seeking liar who would sell his father's name for money -- and he did, as they say, into six figures (page 330).

"Ray," they say, knew "intuitively" that "Rickey was telling the truth."  They say their emphasis, that "He saw that Rickey was telling the truth," (page 330).

Their next account of their work on the assassination they say was, "In March of 1992," when "Mary was back at the Dallas archives going through assassination-related police intelligence files" (page 339).  In their own account other than the six months they wasted on the Rickey White baloney, they did nothing on the assassination.

They follow this with the beginning of their criticisms of Rather and of Aynesworth until, briefly  (on page 342), they have a few words about Garrison and Ferrie and Arcacha Smith. They found Arcacha "almost as interesting as Ferrie" although they make no claim to having done any work on either.  They defend Arcacha for the next three pages and then they are at Rather and Aynesworth again, with an occasional added mention of Arcacha, of whom they knew not a thing, really.  And then they are where we began quoting from their last pages in their "White Lies."

So, aside from whatever Mary did in this police files, they do not claim to have done a lick of work on the assassination -- not the tiniest smidgen of it.

And as they are telling us in what is quoted beginning in "the summer of 1992" they went to work on funding and placing their "groundbreaking" documentary, no work on the assassination.  There is also what they say they did, spent a year and a half locating the total irrelevancy they tabloided on "A Current Affair," the tramp Harold Doyle (page 328).

What, if anything, they did to make a living for themselves and their family, they do not say.  They also do not say that they were wealthy and did not have to work for long periods of time.  That they needed funding for their "documentary" does not inspire the belief they were wealthy.  But whether or not they did anything on the assassination itself, as distinguished from their myths, they make no claim to having done any work on what became their book, any work at all on preparing themselves to be able to write responsibly, as most writers intending responsibility in their writing do.  If we are to believe what they represent about themselves and their research, their bibliography, they had those 10 million words of the Warren Commission evidence to read, plus its large Report, plus the report and the published hearings of the House assassins committee and all the other assassination books most of which they list are trash to have used enough to include them in their bibliography.  Indeed, they do quote extensively from some of them.

Whether they decided to take Ray's uncle's advice, which they describe as "not unreasonable," for Ray "to try a different line of work" their book does not indicate.

Mary's dreams, sometimes vision, are important in their work.  They are guided by these "messages":

One day Mary received a dream message.  She woke up thinking: "Syndication." Ray took the hint.  He dialed the number of an independent Dallas TV station and asked for local names and numbers of syndication salesmen.  The programming director was helpful, reeling off the names of several syndicaters, including the local paramount and MTM salesmen.

The Paramount office asked if they had talked with "Hard Copy."

They hadn't.

"Somebody will get back with you," Ray was told.

The following Monday, someone did.  It was Linda Bell, soon to be co-executive producer of "Hard Copy."  Linda asked Mary what made her think of them.  "It's not >Current Affair,'" she said.  They hit it off.  

Mary explained what they had, focusing on Oswald's cellmate John Elrod, and suggested a headline -- "Oswald Talked" (page 346).

Mary's 1992 dream led to the title of their 1996 book.  Among other things.

Although this and a few tidbits not quoted here identify these supermarket tabloid version of TV news as entertainment that thanks to the La Fontaines is about change:

The conversations continued over the next couple of weeks, then Linda sent her new supervising producer, Ron Vandor, to Dallas to talk with the La Fontaines in Las Colinas.  Vandor, a refugee from television news, told a cautionary tale -- he went to "Hard Copy" initially planning to stay a few months, and ended up loving tabloid.  With the exit of Peter Brennan (who returned to "Current Affair") the show was changing, Ron said.  There was less T&A and more serious journalism.  The Elrod story could be a step in this direction (pages 346-347).

As we saw earlier the transcript of the show reveals how much of a "step" and in what direction, if there was any change at Hard Copy.

They have a high opinion of Hard Copy.  It is their kind of journalism:

. . .  "Hard Copy" took the stories seriously and protected their confidentiality.  The executives didn't even want to know the whereabouts of the key witnesses (the more people who knew, the more possibilities for a leak) or see the documents on the segments Ray would produce.  They knew the La Fontaines had these, and they trusted them to do it their way.  Ray also retained domestic and foreign rights on the stories after they would air in November.  More significantly, the La Fontaines would keep all the raw footage not used in the programs (thirty-three Beta tapes in all) to produce the one-hour documentary they couldn't find funding for earlier.  In essence, "Hard Copy" agreed to serve as corporate funder (unlike the MacArthur Foundation, Exxon, Mobil Oil, and a dozen other aggressively civic minded organizations) for the little matter of telling the truth about the Kennedy assassination to the American public (page 347).

That the executive of Hard Copy wanted to know nothing about the people who would be aired and did not want to see the "documents" says much that the La Fontaines do not say about that show, its "news" interest and its responsibility.  A simpler explanation is that they just did not want to know so they could later claim ignorance.

That there were "thirty-three Beta tapes" or "raw footage," well over the hour of which some would be used in the show, indicates the amount of time spent in getting what could be used on the show.  It also would seem to reflect that of all the material what was aired was the best.  That being the case, little as Elrod would say -- not a word that they attribute to him in the book -- the lack of value of the rest can be seen.

That Hard Copy was so civic-minded is news.  Whether what was aired is reasonably described as "the little matter of telling the truth about the Kennedy assassination to the American public."

It was not!

When in 454 pages the La Fontaines could not begin to do that, never having taken the time to begin to learn for themselves, the probabilities of their doing that on their Hard Copy show were not high and the transcript of that show reveals that they did not exist at all.

After a little more boasting about their show, which was timed to exploit the assassination anniversary, this follows:

It seems likely that the Elrod revelations -- courtesy in large part of "Hard Copy" -- will ultimately overshadow the million-dollar-plus joint three-hour PBS/BBC project for "Frontline."  If so, it would be an irony the La Fontaines couldn't help but enjoy, and lament, at the same time.  One of the major historical events of our fast-closing century was ultimately chronicled not on educational television, or even on a commercial network, but on a tabloid (page 348).

Modest to a fault they do not claim a Pulitzer.

Their book has been out long enough at this writing for them to have learned that when it comes to "overshadowing" it could not "overshadow" a deep sewer -- which is where it belongs.

What they "chronicled" had nothing to do with the assassination.  It had more to do with them.  As their own daughter gave them to understand:

The idea of continuing on the tabloid trail wasn't a happy thought for Eugenia.  She had attended an expensive Catholic girls' school that had honed her natural gift for the guilt trip into a lethal weapon.

"Don't tell me you're going to do another one," she told her father.

"It's in the blood now, kid.  Once you start doing tabloids, you can't stop."

"Great.  Next it'll be pornos."

"I hadn't thought of that.  You might have a point.  One step at a time, though" (pages 348-9).

It had to be "in the blood" like a virus, for them to do this book.

It is a reasonable interpretation of what Ray told his daughter that when he and her mother do pornographic films that will be one step by inference up.

It certainly can't be more indecent than their book and their Hard Copy "journalism" they evaluate as the best ever.

The Elrod story is a non-story.

When he refused to say himself what the La Fontaines claim he told others, what he allegedly told others cannot be used by responsible writers even if he told them what they claim.  With their 33 cassettes the La Fontaines have plenty on tape and that includes not a word of what they attribute to him from Elrod himself.  The Hard Copy transcript reveals that he steadfastly refused to say what they were trying to get him to say and that all the others did all the talking, with Elrod saying least of all and never once in all that time uttering a word they could use to support their Hard Copy show and/or their book.

Elrod insisted to the FBI that he knew nothing at all about the assassination.

There is no way of dancing around this.  He is the best authority on what he knows and he said and insisted that he knew nothing at all about the assassination.  For all of the La Fontaine inferences they do not show he could have known anything about the assassination.

The existing and known facts, known to others than the La Fontaines at least, the circumstances and what never once corrupts their baseless conjectures, plain, ordinary, old-fashioned, non-TV tabloid common sense all tell us this.

The La Fontaines know at the least some of this very well.  They knew that despite all their efforts, the considerable effort reflected by that large number of tapes, Elrod refused to say a single word they attribute to him so they could phony up their phony book.

They also know that they know nothing at all about the assassination itself or the official investigations of it other than they may have picked up from the junk and trash they read and the silliness they heard from their nutty gurus such as the one who shares the dedication of their book, the one who "discovered" what was public when he was no more than a little boy.

These self-important fools have made a public spectacle of themselves.

Their arrogance, their subject-matter ignorance and their all-synergizing dishonesty assured this.

I refer to the text of their book above because they have what ordinarily would be chapters of the book as in appendix to it.  The last words in the second of these, what is alleged to be "The Case Against Oswald" and is no such thing, illustrate this point and at the same time illustrate their dishonesty, their lying.

They refer to this as part of their "new evidence" when it is not that at all:

As we saw in chapter 1, the 1992 discovery by Bill Adams of a 1964 Memphis FBI report on John Elrod altered the Oswald-Ruby pre-assassination landscape, providing for the first time documentary support of a connection between the two men.  We know now that Oswald himself spoke of Jack Ruby's presence at a Dallas motel-room meeting where the ex-Marine was present shortly before the assassination.  It was Elrod's knowledge that Oswald spoke of Ruby, the man he wasn't supposed to have known, and that he was subsequently murdered by the bar owner even within the "protection" of the Dallas police station that drove the frightened cook from Dallas forever (page 397).

This is not in any sense of the word "evidence."  It in fact is not the truth.  They lie.  "We do" NOT "know that Oswald himself spoke of Jack Ruby's presence at a Dallas motel-room meeting" where Oswald also was before the assassination.

That is part of what they made up.

As we saw, Elrod would not say that he had any such "knowledge" and that when they were pressing him hard for the Hard Copy show.

We have seen also that the FBI Memphis report says the opposite of what they claim it says and even that Adams did not even "discover" it.

Yet look at the claims they make for themselves and their irrelevancy and trivia they escalated into a TV show and then his book.

As we saw they make a big thing of what was not new but was to them, that Oswald DoD card with the number 1173.  They waste an entire chapter, "House of Cards," on this in their book of eleven chapters (pages 65-90).  As they acknowledge, Paul Hoch had spotted what they did twenty years earlier.  As they do not acknowledge, for all their effort they add nothing of any meaning to his work and they fail to address some of the questions his work raises.  Such as how a picture of Oswald taken in Minsk could appear on the DoD card issued to him at Santa Ana before his discharge from the marines -- weeks if not months before he was in Minsk.  

There are questions but the La Fontaines answer none of them.  They do not even raise some.  They raise those they can appear make believe originate with them as they personalize all of this.

None of this is new or news.  It had been carried as far as was possible by Hoch.

The La Fontaines rehash it and think the world turned on that.  Or should have.

And when?

To commercialize and exploit the assassination anniversary still again, as they did again later with their Hard Copy nothingness.

Their story appeared in the Houston Post on the assassination anniversary, on November 22, 1993.

They were incensed when the AP did not pick that story up from the Houston Post.  To them this was the equal of AP's sin in not giving a big play to their utterly totally irrelevant "tramp" story.

When the AP did not give major attention to their rehashes and fabrications they personalized that, too, as they seek to personalize so much in their book.

That others did not evaluate their supermarket-tabloid concept of journalism as they did meant to them only that they and they alone were being discriminated against.

Over the year an enormous amount of assassination information, not the trivia and junk they rehash and make into what it was not and could not be, has come to light.  The major media has ignored all this information, real information, not the La Fontaine hogwash they inflate to importance it never had or could have had.  The major media ignored all that preceded them, what was real news, not cock-and-bull junk and trivia.

What is lost on the La Fontaines and the others who seek to commercialize and exploit the assassination is that all the excuse the major media has for not doing what in a society like ours it must do for our system to work is to point to all the trash trivia, distortions and misrepresentations and outright lies dumped on it, like this La Fontaine adventure in literary whoring.

With all that was dumped on the major media that clearly had nothing to do with the assassination it had its excuse for ignoring the solid information it should have taken to the people and did not.

This is not new.  It did not begin with the La Fontaines.  But their career, their adventuring, does provide the major media with the excuse it needs to explain and justify all its abdications to itself.  The abominable record of the major media is well documented, but not by the literary-whoring La Fontaines and not with the nonsense and trash stories they resurrect or make up and for which they demand attention that is not justified.  Major stories went unreported.  But many also are documented, documented thoroughly, and they are not made up out of nothing by self-seekers, particularly not by those who neither know a thing about the assassination or want to.  Documented with serious, factual, relevant documents, not as is done by the horseless cavalry of the SiliconValley, with what makes no difference to begin with and has no real meaning when they are finished with it. 

From the depths of their ignorance and the sickness of their egos they do personalize all of this when all they have the right to personalize is what they cannot feel, shame.  They  did, as we saw, say that there was no "new" assassination information disclosed at the time of the thirtieth assassination anniversary other than their supermarket-tabloid Elrod swill.  They described it as "the only new counter-Warren evidence presented by the media" then.

What they wrote does not address any of the official conclusions.  They began by assuming what officialdom assumed so they could not end up disagreeing with officialdom -- and they do not.

This worse than trash of theirs, what has nothing at all to do with the assassination or its investigation and with attention would confuse and mislead the people even more, they actually say will "overshadow" all else.  They add what it is disgusting even to repeat,

One of the major historical events of our fast-closing century was ultimately chronicled not on educational TV television, or even on a commercial network, but on a tabloid" (page 348). 

What they did is to "chronicle" the assassination? 

They produced "counter-Warren evidence" by assuming without any question at all its most basic premise and preconception, that Oswald was the assassin?

With Elrod, who is not mentioned in the Warren conclusions and who did not figure in its inquiry at all, the Elrod who on camera refused to say for them what they base their book on their claim that he did so say it, too?

What they actually "chronicled" is their own arrogance, subject-matter ignorance and stupidity and their own permeating dishonesty.

In this they do serve a useful purpose.  They illustrate and typify the harm from their trashing our history from the corrupting of what the people can know and our history can record from all of those who pimp and whore with our history.

And rather than "countering" the official assassination mythology they join the legion of others who by their own approach and their method as well as the content of their very bad and dishonest books cannot avoid adding to the confusion and misunderstandings in the wake of the Warren Report.  In this they have the effect of supporting the official assassination mythology and of protecting errant officialdom.

That had to be their beginning intent when without assessing any of the evidence at all they began with what they acknowledge, their assumption of Oswald's guilt.  

At the end of their assassination adventuring, and let us hope we are there, they  still have not examined the actual evidence to determine whether or not Oswald was or even could have been guilty.

So, what they really "chronicle" is their own determined departure from all that was good, really great in American journalism for their new "journalism" of the supermarket-tabloid whether on TV or in writing.

They chronicle the distortion, misrepresentation and corruption of our history.

They chronicle their corruption of it along with their personal and professional failings and abdications that include dishonesties, as documented herein and can be documented at greater length and in greater detail.
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